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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )

) MUR 6393
Nebraska Republican Party and Rodney )
Krogh, in his official capacity as )
treasurer )

CERTIFICATION

I, Shelley E. Garr, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission executive
session on October 04, 2011, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0, on
an amended pre-meeting tally, to take the following actions in MUR 6393:

L. Find no reason to believe that the Nebraska Republican Party and

Rodasy Krogh, in his official capacity as treasurer violated
11 CF.R. § 110.11(a) and (b).

2, Close the file and send the appropriate letters.

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen, Walther, and Weintraub voted
affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:

%L Q01 ?&“L%,—M
Date helley E.

Deputy Secretary of the Commission
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

OCT 12 201

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Laura A. Wigley
Nebraska Democratic Party
1327 H Street #200
Lincoln, NE 68508
RE: MUR 6393
Nebraska Republican Party
Rodney Krogh, Treasurer
Dear Ms. Wigley:

The Federal Election Commission reviewed the allegations in your complaint received on
October 13, 2010. On October 4, 2011, based upon the information provided in the complaint,
and information provided by the respondent, the Commission determined that there was no
reason to believe tha respandents vinlated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as
amended. Therefore, the Commission decided to close its file in this matter on October 4, 2011.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days, See |
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files, 68 Fed.
Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). A copy of the dispositive General Counsel’s Report is enclosed for
your information. The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a
complainant to seek judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C.

§ 437g (a)(8). ‘

omplaints Examination and
Legal Administration

Enclosure
General Counsel's Report
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

OCT 12 204

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL

L. Steven Grasz
Husch Blackwell, LLP
1620 Dodge Street, Suite 2100
Omaba, NE 68102
RE: MUR 6393
Nebraska Republican Party
Rodney Krogh, Treasurer
Dear Mr. Grasz:

On October 15, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified your clients of a
complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971,
as amended.

On October 4, 2011, the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the
complaint, and information provided by you on behalf of your clients, that there is no reason to
believe the Nebraska Republican Party and Rodney Krogh, in his official capacity as treasurer
violated 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a) and (b) regarding the proper use of disclaimers. Accardingly, the
Commission closed its file in this matter.

Documents retated to the case will be plaeed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosune of Closeri Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dee. 18, 2003).

If you have any guestions, please contact Kim Collins, the staff member assigned to this
matter at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Anthony H

Complaints Examination and
Legal Administration

Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of ) _

)
MUR 6393 ) CASE CLOSURE UNDER THE
NEBRASKA REPUBLICAN PARTY ) ENFORCEMENT PRIORITY

AND RODNEY KROGH, AS TREASURER ) SYSTEM
)

RAL COUNSEL’S REPORT
Under the Enforcement Priority Systam (“EPS”), the Cammission uses formal
scoring criteria to allocate its resources and decide which cases to pursae. These criteria
include, but are not limited to, an assessment of (1) the gravity of the alleged violation,
both with respect to the type of activity and the amount in violation, (2) the apparent
imﬁact the alleged violation may have had on the electoral process, (3) the legal

complexity of issues raised in the case, (4) recent trends in poiential violations of the

Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“Act”), and (5) development of the
law with respect to certain subject matters. It is the Commission’s policy that pursuing
low-eated mattess, compated to other higher-rated nesteers on the Enfarcement dotket,
wareants tiss exorcise of its penseoutorisi disciztion ta dismiss eertain eases, or i eertain
cases where there sre no facts to support the allegations, $o make no reasan to believe
findings. For the reasons set farth below, this Office recommends that the Commission
make no reason to believe findings in MUR 6393.

In this matter, the complainant, Laura A. Wigley of the Nebraska Democratic

Party (“NDP"), alleges that the Nebraska Republican Party and Rodney Krogh, in his

official capacity as treasurer (“NRP"), violated the Act by failing to include disclaimers
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Case Closure Under EPS - 6393
General Counsel’s Report
Page 2 ' _
on certain pieces of bulk electronic mail (“email™), defined as email of more than 500
substantially similar communications.' Specifically, the complaint asserts that the NRP,
failed to include the required disclaimer - “Paid for by the Nebraska Republican Party
and not authorized by any candidate or candidate’s committee” - on eight email
communications.’ The complaint also states that several of these emails urge recipients to
volumeer for specific federal cairdidetns, invite gucsts 1o a fundvaiser fexsaring a federal
candidate, ar solicit fiuxds for a fsderal exmemittes. As a result, the compizint concludes
that the cammnnications lacked the requized disclaimexs for communications that solicit
federal funds or contain express advacacy.

: The eight emails, which were seut by the NPR on December 19, 2009, December
23, 2009, April 21, 2010, April 29, 2010, June 3, 2010, August 31, 2010, September 10,
2010, and Scptember 28, 2010, arc attached to the complaint. While all eight emails
identify the sender as the “Nebraska Republican Party info@negop.org™ the recipient line
is left blank. The complainant does not indicate on what basis it determined these cight
email communications constituted bulk email and, therefore, violated the Act.

In response, the NRP denies the ocmplaingat’s allegation thae it was nsquived te
inciude diselaimars an the amails at issue. The NRP contends that disclaimore were not
required becanse the applicable regulation, 11 C.F.R. § 110.11, applies anly to
“unsolicited” email of more than 500 substantially similar communications and the eight

emails at issue were directed to email subscribers. Citing the Commission’s Explanation

! The complaint does not identify the specific statutes or regulatiens it alleges the NRP violated.

2 The complaint references two NRP email communications, dated May 12, 2010 and June 25,
2010, which do incinde dicclaimers and includes a copy of a June 25* email. The May 12, 2010 emil
appears to be missing, although an invitation to an event for NRP member Duane Acklie found at pages 25
and 26 of the complaint, may be part of that email communication.
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and Justification relating to the disclaimer regulations, the NLP states that a disclaimer is
not required on email communications where recipients have taken some affirmative step
to be on a list used by the sender. Explanation and Justification, 67 Fed. Reg. 76964
(Dec. 13 2002). According to the NRP, the eight email communications at issue were not
direct=d to the geaeral public, but were instead interrial party comeunications sem to
individenals wiio lud previously expressed an interest in tie NRP pursumat to the prrty
comsnittee's opt in systam for amail subscribers. The respense idaxgifies the resipionts of
the eight emails as party officers, central committee members, local party efficers, key
supporters, regular contributors, party activists and volunteers, but does not provide the
actual number of each email issued by the party committee.® Although the NRP states
that it is iheomticully posu;ble that one or more recipients of the emails at issue could
havegotienonﬂwlistwithoutmkhgsomeafﬁrmaﬁvesteptodo 80, it contends that this
wouldnoltbethenormundu its “opt in” system.

| In_condmim.thempomemmatmeeightemailsatismemﬁmtehmﬂ
party commumcunom rather than “unsolicited” emufls and, therefore, do not require
disclaimers pursuant to 11 C.ER. § 110.11, Accerdingly, the NEP ssuoats that the
complaint be dismissed and the matter glosed.

Any public communication made by  palitical committee, including

communications that do not expressly advocate the election or defeat of a clearly

identified candidate or solicit a contribution, must display a disclaimer stating who paid

3 The response also provides the following description of the eight emails at issue: an invitation to a
rally (December 19, 2009), a Christres card/grecting (Decesiber 23, 2009), a ssileisition to jnin the
Nebraska Republican Party Wall of Fame (April 21, 2010), an invitation to a 2010 Primary Election Night
Party (April 29, 2010), an announcemnent relating to county party conveations (June 3, 201Q), a newslotter
described as the “Chairman’s Report” (August 31, 2010), an announcenient regarding the opening of a call
center (September 10, 2010), aﬂmmmmm;mammwmmeﬁon

(September 28, 2010).
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for the communication and whether or not it was authorized by a candidate, authorized
committee or agent for either entity. 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a) and (b). These disclaimer
requirements apply to political committees’ websites available to the general public and
emails of more than 500' substantially similar communications. 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a)1).
As noted in the response, the Commission limited the scope of the email requirement to
email commusriaations involwing inore thea 500 substantially similar unsoligieed cmails.
See Explanatien anl Justification, 67 Fed. Reg. 76864 (Dec. 13, 2002). There is na
evidence contradicting the NRP's assertion that the eight emails at issue were sent only to
individuals who had previously opted into the party committee’s subscriber system for
email communications and, therefore, did not require disclaimers. See 11 CFR.
§ 110.11(a)(1).

| This Office believes that the complainant’s allegations that the NRP violated the
Act and Commission regulations by failing to include disclaimers on eight email
communications are insufficient to overcome the NRF”"s specific denials. Accordingly,
this Office recommends that the Commission find no reason to belicve that the Nebraska
Repisbliean Party med Rodney Krogh, in his oificial capacity as teeasurer violunad 11
C.ER. § 110.11(a) sad (b).
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RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Find no reason to believe that the Nebraska Republican Party and Rodney Krogh,
in his offizial capscity as treasurer violated 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(a) and (b).

2. Close the file and send the appropriate letters.

oS

BY:

Christopher Hughey
Acting General Counsel

R.
Special Counsel
Complaints Examination
& Legal Administrati

Qe

Complaints Examination
& Legal Administration

Marianne Abely
Attomey
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